
           

Industrial Development
Authority
Regular Meeting

  
  

November 14, 2023 | 7:30 a.m.
 
Chandler City Council Chambers       
88 E. Chicago St., Chandler, AZ
or Webex 1-602-666-0783
code 2663 394 1126 password mtHKMpWw995

  

 

Directors
President Shannon Wilson
Vice President Charles Ertl
Secretary William Nolde
Treasurer Ed Salanga
Director Lee Kroll
Director John Lok
Director James Baglini Jr. 

 
Pursuant to Resolution No. 4464 of the City of Chandler and to A.R.S. § 38-431.02, notice is
hereby given to the members of the Industrial Development Authority and to the general
public that the Industrial Development Authority will hold a REGULAR MEETING open to the
public on Tuesday, November 14, 2023, at 7:30 a.m., at City Council Chambers, 88 E.
Chicago Street, Chandler, AZ. One or more Directors may be attending by telephone or
via Webex.

Persons with disabilities may request a reasonable modification or communication aids and
services by contacting the City Clerk's office at (480) 782-2181(711 via AZRS). Please make
requests in advance as it affords the City time to accommodate the request. 

Agendas are available in the Office of the City Clerk, 175 S. Arizona Avenue.  

Page 1 of 3  Industrial Development Authority

https://chandleraz.webex.com/chandleraz/j.php?MTID=m7f2b779c9fb0f482c0b4c409fc0c3b65
https://chandleraz.webex.com/chandleraz/j.php?MTID=m7f2b779c9fb0f482c0b4c409fc0c3b65


Industrial Development Authority
Regular Meeting Agenda - November 14, 2023

 
           

Call to Order/Roll Call
 

Scheduled/Unscheduled Public Appearances
Members of the audience may address any item not on the agenda. State Statute prohibits the Board or
Commission from discussing an item that is not on the agenda, but the Board or Commission does listen to your
concerns and has staff follow up on any questions you raise.
 

Approval of Minutes
 

1. Minutes of May 9, 2023, Regular Meeting
  Move the Industrial Development Authority to approve the minutes from the May 9, 2023,

Regular Meeting.
 

Briefing Items and Discussion
 

2. May, June, July, August and September 2023 Financials - Mr. Steele
 

3. IRS Form 990 Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2023 - Mr. Steele
 

4. Arizona Corporation Commission Annual Report - Mr. Steele
 

5. Chandler Workforce Development Software Platform Grant Proposal Presentation
 – Ms. McCall

 

Action Agenda
 

6. Discussion and possible approval of the Chandler Workforce Development
Software Platform Grant Proposal.
 

  

 

Member Comments/Announcements
 

Calendar
 

7. Next Meeting Date: December 12, 2023   
 

Page 2 of 3  Industrial Development Authority



 

Information Items
 

Adjourn
 

Page 3 of 3  Industrial Development Authority



ITEM  1 

Industrial Development Authority      Management Services 
       

Date: 11/14/2023
To: Industrial Development Authority
Thru: Dawn Lang, Deputy City Manager | CFO

Kristi Smith, Assistant Director of Financial Services
From: Robert Steele, Accounting Manager 
Subject: Minutes of May 9, 2023, Regular Meeting

Proposed Motion:
Move the Industrial Development Authority to approve the minutes from the May
9, 2023, Regular Meeting.

Attachments
IDA Meeting Minutes 5-09-23 



Meeting Minutes 
Industrial Development Authority 

Regular Meeting 
 

May 9, 2023| 7:30 a.m. 
Chandler City Council Chambers 
88 E. Chicago Street, Chandler, AZ 
 
 
Call to Order 
The meeting was called to order by President Lee Kroll at 7:30 a.m. 
 

Roll Call 
Commission Attendance     Staff Attendance 
President Lee Kroll       Dawn Lang, Deputy City Manager | CFO 
Vice President Shannon Wilson     Tawn Kao, Assistant City Attorney    
Secretary Chuck Ertl      Kristi Smith, Financial Services Asst Director 
Treasurer Edward Salanga     Robert Steele, Accounting Senior Manager  
Director Bill Nolde       Karla Lange, Management Assistant 
Director John Lok         
Director James Baglini, Jr.      

   
   
    
       
     
Absent 
None.    
     

Scheduled and Unscheduled Public Appearances 
None. 
 
Approval of Minutes 

1. Vice President Wilson moved to approve the February 14, 2023, Regular Meeting 
Minutes. Secretary Ertl seconded the motion. Motion approved unanimously, (7-0). 



Page 2 of 5 
 

 
Briefing Items 

2. January 2023 Financials: Mr. Steele presented the January Statement of Net Position that 
explained a Total Current Assets with Cash in Bank of $245,733, investments of 
$896,979, providing Total Assets of $1,142,712. The Beginning Net Position is $999,720 
and a Year-to-Date Change in Net Position of $142,991, providing an Ending Net Position 
of $1,142,712. The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Net Position 
for January 31, 2023, includes no change to Operating Income or Operating Expenses 
and Investment Income of $570, providing a Net Change in Net Position of $570.  
 
February 2023 Financials: Mr. Steele presented the February Statement of Net Position 
that explained a Total Current Assets with Cash in Bank of $100,033, Investments of 
$1,044,619, providing Total Assets of $1,144,651. The Beginning Net Position is $999,720 
and a Year-to-Date Change in Net Position of $144,931, providing an Ending Net Position 
of $1,144,651. The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Net Position 
for February 28, 2023, includes no change to Operating Income or Operating Expenses 
and Investment Income of $1,940, providing a Net Change in Net Position of $1,940. 
 
Mr. Steele reported that $140,700 has been transferred from the JP Morgan Chase cash 
account to the PFM investment account in February 2023, which is reflected in the 
decrease in the cash account and increase in the investment account.   
 
March 2023 Financials: Mr. Steele presented the March Statement of Net Position that 
explained a Total Current Assets with Cash in Bank of $100,033, Investments of 
$1,046,241, providing Total Assets of $1,146,274. The Beginning Net Position is $999,720 
and a Year-to-Date Change in Net Position of $146,553, providing an Ending Net Position 
of $1,146,274. The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Net Position 
for March 31, 2023, includes no change to Operating Income, Operating Expenses of $43 
in bank charges and Investment Income of $1,666, providing a Net Change in Net 
Position of $1,622. 
 
Responding to President Kroll concerns, Mr. Steele reported that the IDA’s contracted 
bank is JP Morgan Chase, the same bank the City uses.  Although there is not guarantee, 
this is a very large banking institution and the City believes the risk of failure is low.  
 
Responding to President Kroll, Mr. Steele noted that the $1.00 one-time revenue line 
that appears on the financial reports is the result of a test deposit from Intel to verify 
the bank account prior to paying their Annual Administrative fee.  Additionally, Mr. 
Steele confirmed that the transfer from the cash account to the investment account of 
$140,700 resulted in the decrease of the overall cash balance and increase in the 
investment account, showing no material change in the overall net position.  
 



Page 3 of 5 
 

Responding to Secretary Ertl, Mr. Steele noted that the IDA follows the City of Chandler’s 
investment policy, which is very conservative.  The City of Chandler is AAA bond rated, 
which it is very careful to maintain.  He added that the City meets with their investment 
advisors quarterly to ensure City policy is being followed and that the investments 
remain conservative.  Ms. Lang added that the City’s Investment policy follows Arizona 
Revised Statues, only allowing certain investment types and the length to be no more 
than five years. 
 
 

Action Agenda 
3. Request approval of the FY 2023-24 Budget: Mr. Steele reviewed the proposed Budget 

for FY 2023-24.  The proposed Investment Income for the next fiscal year is 
conservatively expected to be $2,500.  The Annual Administrative fees have increased 
due to the addition of the Intel Bond issued in December 2022.  The Annual 
Administrative fees are proposed to be $142,539, received from Intel, Tri-City Baptist 
Church and CCAP Fees of $1,500 providing total Revenues of $146,539. On the 
Expenditure side, there are legal fees of $1,000 and miscellaneous fees of $500 
providing a Fund Balance of $145,039.  
 
Responding to Treasurer Salanga, Mr. Steele confirmed that the two (2) CCAP Fees are 
conditional upon the IDA receiving two (2) $50,000 pledges.  
 
 
 
Vice President Wilson pointed out that the investment income for FY 2022-23 is at 
approximately $6,000 and inquired whether the proposed $2,500 investment income in 
the FY2023-24 budget is always this conservative.  Ms. Lang noted that this portion may 
have not been updated to reflect the recent change in interest rates over the past year.  
Secretary Ertl concurred with Vice President Wilson that 2.5% return was very 
conservative for the current market.  Mr. Steele noted that the portfolio is currently 
averaging a 4% return.  
 
President Kroll concurred with Vice President Wilson that the income basis should be 
higher.  He voiced that on the flip side, because the IDA is banking with Chase, the 
interest income is lower versus banking with a local institution.  He asked if the IDA is 
banking with Chase because of the City’s policy?  Ms. Lang responded that there are a 
variety of needs across the various departments of the City that local institutions are not 
able to meet.  She added that the City of Chandler’s bank is chosen via Request for 
Proposal (RFP) and it is typically the large banks that respond, as they offer services that 
smaller banks are unable to offer.  The contract for the City’s banking services 
accommodates the needs of departments like Utility Services.  She added that the City 
does have relationships with the smaller, local banks in the area, and has, in the past, 
utilized them for smaller, more specified programs.  



Page 4 of 5 
 

 
Responding to Director Lok, Ms. Lang voiced that the City’s investments are split 
between two (2) institutions – Wells Fargo (now All Spring) and PFM/AM Financial.  She 
added that the IDA investments are managed solely by PFMAM Financial, which is a 
separate company from JPMorgan.  
 
Mr. Steele reported to the Board that the IDA’s investments are comprised of 69% in US 
Treasury Bonds and 31% in Federal Agency Bonds.  He continued that he recommended 
to the Board an updated Investment Income budget of $7,500, based on this past fiscal 
year’s investment income, the increase in interest rates and on the balance increase of 
the investment account from the recent cash deposit.  
 
Secretary Ertl motioned to approve the proposed FY 2023-24 budget, to include a 
revision to increase of the proposed Investment Income from $2,500 to $7,500. Vice 
President Wilson seconded the motion. Motion approved unanimously, (7-0). See Exhibit 
A for the updated FY 2023-24 approved budget.  
 

4. Election of Officers (President, Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer): Ms. Lange asked 
for nominations. Treasurer Salanga recommended a rotation of positions moving 
Shannon Wilson to President; Chuck Ertl to Vice President; Ed Salanga to Secretary; and 
Bill Nolde to Treasurer, with the remaining as Directors in rotation. Vice President Wilson 
motioned to approve, and Secretary Ertl seconded the motion, motion approved 
unanimously, (7-0). 
 

Member Comments/Announcements 
None. 

 

Calendar 
5. The next regular meeting will be held on Tuesday, June 13, 2023, at 7:30 a.m. 

 
Informational Items 
None. 
 

Adjourn 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:55 a.m. 
 
___________________________ 

Lee Kroll, President 
 
  



Page 5 of 5 
 

 

Exhibit A 
 

Chandler Industrial Development Authority 
Proposed Budget for FY 2023-24 

          

          
          

        Proposed Budget 
FY 2023-24         

        
Revenues           

 Investment Income                      7,500  

 Annual Admin Fees (1)                  142,539  

 CCAP Fees (2)                       1,500  
          

 Total Income       $          151,539  

          
          
Expenditures        

 

Legal Fees - General 
Admin    

 $              1,000  

 Miscellaneous                          500  

          

 Total Expenditures      $              1,500  

          
Additions to Fund Balance      $          150,039  

          
          
          
Note 1:  Annual Admin Fees will end 12/1/2035 for Intel Series 2005, 12/1/2037 for Intel Series 2007, 

  6/1/2049 for Intel Series 2019, 6/1/2052 for Intel Series 2022, and 12/1/2037 for Tri-City 

 Baptist Series 2012A&B.        

Note 2:  
Chandler Collateral Assistance Program (CCAP) fees for two 
$50,000 pledges.  

 



ITEM  2 

Industrial Development Authority      Management Services 
       

Date: 11/14/2023
To: Industrial Development Authority
Thru: Dawn Lang, Deputy City Manager | CFO

Kristi Smith, Assistant Director of Financial Services
From: Robert Steele, Accounting Manager 
Subject: May, June, July, August and September 2023 Financials - Mr. Steele

Attachments
IDA Financial Statements May 2023 to September 2023 



CHANDLER INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash in Bank 100,032.78$  

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 100,032.78$       

OTHER ASSETS:
Investments 1,049,239.05
TOTAL OTHER ASSETS 1,049,239.05

TOTAL ASSETS 1,149,271.83$    
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             

CAPITAL:

BEGINNING NET POSITION 999,720.47$  
Year-to-Date Change in Net Position 149,551.36

ENDING NET POSITION 1,149,271.83$    

MAY 31, 2023



CHANDLER INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

11 Month Ended
May 31, 2023

OPERATING REVENUES:
     Annual Admin Fees (Intel) 140,539.12    
     Annual Admin Fees (Tri-City Babtist Church) -                  
     Other Revenue 1.00                

TOTAL Income -                  140,540.12    

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES -                  140,540.12    

OPERATING EXPENSES:
      Annual Corporation Report 10.00              
     Miscellaneous (Account Analysis
     Settlement Bank Charge) 6.95                

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 16.95              

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) -                  140,523.17    

NONOPERATING REVENUE:
     Investment Income (LOSS)-Note 1 515.83            9,028.19         

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUE 515.83            9,028.19         

NET CHANGE IN NET POSITION 515.83$          149,551.36    

Note 1 - Interest Income (Loss) is as follows:
     Realized interest to date 515.83$          9,028.19         
     Effect of recording investments at amortized cost -                   

May 31, 2023

May 31, 2023



CHANDLER INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash in Bank 100,032.78$  
Accounts Receivable 2,000.00        

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 102,032.78$       

OTHER ASSETS:
Investments 1,051,980.39
TOTAL OTHER ASSETS 1,051,980.39

TOTAL ASSETS 1,154,013.17$    
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             

CAPITAL:

BEGINNING NET POSITION 999,720.47$  
Year-to-Date Change in Net Position 154,292.70

ENDING NET POSITION 1,154,013.17$    

JUN 30, 2023



CHANDLER INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

12 Month Ended
June 30, 2023

OPERATING REVENUES:
     Annual Admin Fees (Intel) 140,539.12    
     Annual Admin Fees (Tri-City Babtist Church) 2,000.00         2,000.00         
     Other Revenue 1.00                

TOTAL Income 2,000.00         142,540.12    

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 2,000.00         142,540.12    

OPERATING EXPENSES:
      Annual Corporation Report 10.00              
     Miscellaneous (Account Analysis
     Settlement Bank Charge) 6.95                

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 16.95              

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 2,000.00         142,523.17    

NONOPERATING REVENUE:
     Investment Income (LOSS)-Note 1 2,741.34         11,769.53       

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUE 2,741.34         11,769.53       

NET CHANGE IN NET POSITION 4,741.34$       154,292.70    

Note 1 - Interest Income (Loss) is as follows:
     Realized interest to date 2,741.34$       11,769.53       
     Effect of recording investments at amortized cost -                   

June 30, 2023

June 30, 2023



CHANDLER INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash in Bank 100,032.78$      
Accounts Receivable 2,000.00            

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 102,032.78$       

OTHER ASSETS:
Investments 1,054,246.49
TOTAL OTHER ASSETS 1,054,246.49

TOTAL ASSETS 1,156,279.27$    
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             

CAPITAL:

BEGINNING NET POSITION 1,154,013.17$   
Year-to-Date Change in Net Position 2,266.10

ENDING NET POSITION 1,156,279.27$    

JUL 31, 2023



CHANDLER INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

1 Month Ended
July 31, 2023

OPERATING REVENUES:
     Annual Admin Fees (Intel)
     Annual Admin Fees (Tri-City Babtist Church) -                  
     Other Revenue

TOTAL Income -                  -                  

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES -                  -                  

OPERATING EXPENSES:
      Annual Corporation Report 
     Miscellaneous (Account Analysis
     Settlement Bank Charge) -                  

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES -                  

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) -                  -                  

NONOPERATING REVENUE:
     Investment Income (LOSS)-Note 1 2,266.10         2,266.10         

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUE 2,266.10         2,266.10         

NET CHANGE IN NET POSITION 2,266.10$       2,266.10         

Note 1 - Interest Income (Loss) is as follows:
     Realized interest to date 2,266.10$       2,266.10         
     Effect of recording investments at amortized cost -                   

July 31, 2023

July 31, 2023



CHANDLER INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash in Bank 102,032.78$      

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 102,032.78$       

OTHER ASSETS:
Investments 1,057,902.73
TOTAL OTHER ASSETS 1,057,902.73

TOTAL ASSETS 1,159,935.51$    
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             

CAPITAL:

BEGINNING NET POSITION 1,154,013.17$   
Year-to-Date Change in Net Position 5,922.34

ENDING NET POSITION 1,159,935.51$    

AUG 31, 2023



CHANDLER INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

2 Month Ended
August 31, 2023

OPERATING REVENUES:
     Annual Admin Fees (Intel)
     Annual Admin Fees (Tri-City Babtist Church) -                  
     Other Revenue

TOTAL Income -                  -                  

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES -                  -                  

OPERATING EXPENSES:
      Annual Corporation Report 
     Miscellaneous (Account Analysis
     Settlement Bank Charge) -                  

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES -                  

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) -                  -                  

NONOPERATING REVENUE:
     Investment Income (LOSS)-Note 1 3,656.24         5,922.34         

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUE 3,656.24         5,922.34         

NET CHANGE IN NET POSITION 3,656.24$       5,922.34         

Note 1 - Interest Income (Loss) is as follows:
     Realized interest to date 3,656.24$       5,922.34         
     Effect of recording investments at amortized cost -                   

August 31, 2023

August 31, 2023



CHANDLER INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash in Bank 102,032.78$      

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 102,032.78$       

OTHER ASSETS:
Investments 1,061,586.74
TOTAL OTHER ASSETS 1,061,586.74

TOTAL ASSETS 1,163,619.52$    
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             

CAPITAL:

BEGINNING NET POSITION 1,154,013.17$   
Year-to-Date Change in Net Position 9,606.35

ENDING NET POSITION 1,163,619.52$    

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023



CHANDLER INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

3 Month Ended
September 30, 2023

OPERATING REVENUES:
     Annual Admin Fees (Intel)
     Annual Admin Fees (Tri-City Babtist Church) -                  
     Other Revenue

TOTAL Income -                  -                  

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES -                  -                  

OPERATING EXPENSES:
      Annual Corporation Report -                  
     Miscellaneous (Account Analysis
     Settlement Bank Charge) -                  

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES -                  

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) -                  -                  

NONOPERATING REVENUE:
     Investment Income (LOSS)-Note 1 3,684.01         9,606.35         

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUE 3,684.01         9,606.35         

NET CHANGE IN NET POSITION 3,684.01$       9,606.35         

Note 1 - Interest Income (Loss) is as follows:
     Realized interest to date 3,684.01$       9,606.35         
     Effect of recording investments at amortized cost -                   

September 30, 2023

September 30, 2023



ITEM  3 

Industrial Development Authority      Management Services 
       

Date: 11/14/2023
To: Industrial Development Authority
Thru: Dawn Lang, Deputy City Manager | CFO

Kristi Smith, Assistant Director of Financial Services
From: Robert Steele, Accounting Manager 
Subject: IRS Form 990 Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2023 - Mr. Steele

Attachments
2022 IRS Form 990 - Filed 
Form 990 Signature Page 































ITEM  4 

Industrial Development Authority      Management Services 
       

Date: 11/14/2023
To: Industrial Development Authority
Thru: Dawn Lang, Deputy City Manager | CFO

Kristi Smith, Assistant Director of Financial Services
From: Robert Steele, Accounting Manager 
Subject: Arizona Corporation Commission Annual Report - Mr. Steele

Attachments
2022 AZ Corp Commission Filing 





ITEM  5 

Industrial Development Authority      Management Services 
       

Date: 11/14/2023
To: Industrial Development Authority
Thru: Dawn Lang, Deputy City Manager | CFO

Kristi Smith, Assistant Director of Financial Services
From: Robert Steele, Accounting Manager 
Subject:Chandler Workforce Development Software Platform Grant Proposal

Presentation  – Ms. McCall

Attachments
IDA Grant Application 
Presentation 



IDA Grant  
Application
Chandler 
Workforce 
Development 
Platform

SUBMITTED TO:  
CHANDLER IDA BOARD

APPLICANT:
CITY OF CHANDLER
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT



Project
Chandler Career Services Platform
The City of Chandler’s Economic Development Division is requesting $53,200 in 
grant funding to implement a workforce development software platform that will 
support Chandler businesses, career seekers, underemployed and unemployed 
individuals with workforce related needs.

The “Pipeline AZ - Chandler Career Services Platform” will be designed and hosted 
by Pipeline AZ, an organization that specializes in building career development and 
exploration platforms. It will be managed by the city’s Workforce Development 
Project Manager, a new position authorized by Mayor and City Council through 
the Fiscal Year 2023-24 budget process. While it is currently a temporary position, 
Economic Development will seek City Council approval in the next budget cycle to 
make it a permanent, full-time position.

By approving this grant request, the Chandler IDA Board can play an important 
role in achieving the Economic Vitality goals set forth in the city’s 2023-25 Strategic 
Framework. In this guiding document, Mayor and City Council highlight the 
importance of workforce development programs and partnerships with higher 
education to create a talent pipeline for key industries.

Hiring 
Companies

Career 
Seekers

Student 
Interns

Counselor 
Support

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT IDA GRANT APPLICATION | 2



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

Platform Features
Chandler Career Services Platform will serve as the one-stop-shop for workforce 
development resources offered by the city and its partners. 

• Case management capabilities for Chandler students and career seekers
• Connect to K-12 and Chandler-Gilbert Community College career advisors 
• Registration page for Chandler employers
• Concierge support for Chandler employers
• Reporting & analytics - registered users, user types, marketing performance
• Administrator Module for system administration tasks

Project Timeline
Upon notification of Chandler IDA grant funding approval, the city will contract  
with Pipeline AZ to design the Chandler Careers Services Platform with a March 
2024 delivery target. The city’s new Workforce Development Project Manager will 
also begin training on how to use the platform.

After the Chandler Career Services Platform is launched, the city will market it as 
a tool for human resources departments. The Workforce Development Project 
Manager will be tasked with outreach to the top 100 employers in Chandler, 
starting with advanced manufacturers.

Quarterly reporting will be used to monitor platform success. The city’s Economic 
Development  Division will share these quarterly reports with the Chandler IDA 
Board. Based on the anticipated platform delivery date, the first quarterly report 
should be available in June 2024. Below is a timeline through Fiscal Year 2023-24.

Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May June

IDA Grant Awarded

Pipeline AZ Contract

Platform Development

Marketing / Outreach

Quarterly Report

IDA GRANT APPLICATION | 3



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

Funding Breakdown
The City of Chandler’s Economic Development Division is requesting $53,200 in 
grant funding from the Chandler IDA Board, which would cover initial software 
development and two years of maintenance by Pipeline AZ for the Chandler Career 
Services Platform. 

Software  
Development

Maintenance 
& Support

Total

Year 1: FY 2023-24 $16,800 $18,200 $35,000

Year 2: FY 2024-25 -- $18,200 $18,200

Totals $16,800 $36,400 $53,200

Micah 
Miranda

ECONOMIC  DEVELOPMENT 
DIRECTOR

Edyie 
McCall

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
SENIOR PROGRAM MANAGER

We appreciate the Chandler IDA 
Board’s review and consideration of 
this grant application.

We believe the Chandler Career 
Services Platform would be a valuable 
community resource and would be 
glad to answer any questions.

Questions?

IDA GRANT APPLICATION | 4



City of 
Chandler
Pipeline AZ Solution

1



2

CONTENTS

01 OUR MISSION

02 CONNECTING ARIZONA

04 CITY OF CHANDLER PLATFORM

03 WORKFORCE  CHALLENGES



We aspire to be the 
single access point for 
comprehensive career 
pathway information in 
Arizona.

MISSION STATEMENT

3



What is Pipeline AZ?
PIPELINE AZ

4

Industry & Career 
Events

Job Placement 
Services

Employer 
Recruitment and 

Retention Support

Individual Career 
Coaching + 
Mentoring

Career 
Development 

Resources

Upskilling 
Programs – Boot 
Camp Fast Track 

Certifications

Education 
Partners

(College + K12)

Workforce 
Partners & Service 

Providers

Pipeline AZ is uniquely positioned as the 
single source of career information and 
pathways in Arizona. 

Our platform enables a network of 
career support for "supply" and 
"demand" stakeholders, maintained 
through community stakeholder tools.

Pipeline AZ provides statewide career 
exploration and workforce development 
support resources through a common 
skill-based language.



56K
JOB SEEKERS SCHOOLS & COLLEGES

383
134K

USERS

92K
STUDENTS

CONNECTING ARIZONA

2,100
NON-PROFIT MANAGERS

7.2K
COMPANIES

5



Will we have enough skilled talent to meet the demands of our current and future business needs? 

Our education, industry and supporting services in career development are desperate to connect our 
students and community members to clear pathways towards local careers.

6

2

Arizona Workforce 
Development is 
Disconnected

1

Arizona Talent Needs are 
Becoming Increasingly Dire

3

Arizona Career Choices are 
Confusing

 Worker Shortage  Changing Skill Needs 
Arizona is Attracting 

New Industries 
90,000 New Jobs are 

Posted Daily 

Arizona’s Workforce 
Challenges

INDUSTRY CHALLENGES



Disconnected Workforce Development
INDUSTRY CHALLENGES

Arizona’s struggles to align talent supply and demand. 

It’s a constant battle to catch-up, with either supply or limited demand. Why?

1. Pressure on Educators

2. Skills vs Requirements

3. Too Many Tools

4. Inconsistent Support

We need one source of relevant information about career development for job seekers to turn their dreams into reality. 

7



CITY OF CHANDLER 
PLATFORM  

8

SOLUTIONS



City of Chandler Platform* 

Our proposal to Chandler is to provide a delivery option that has 
a strategic connection point for workforce development 
resources.  A Subsite with a Custom Landing Page will enable an 
even more bespoke experience as a solution. 

• Case management capabilities 

• User and concierge support for Chandler employers

• Direct connection to Chandler K12 and 

Chandler/Gilbert Community College career advisors

• Additional reporting capabilities through registration 

and tagging

• Administrator Module for system administration tasks

PIPELINE AZ

*Images are for demonstration purposes; your site may look different



PIPELINE AZ

City of Chandler Platform: Features

10

FEATURE SOLUTION

CUSTOM LANDING PAGE Front-end development with Pipeline AZ integration to 
registration, support assignment, and sub-pages

RESOURCE PAGE - EMPLOYER PAGE Employers registering through this page will be tagged as 
Chandler employers

USER SUPPORT For end-users - user guides, contact support page link. Training 
for City of Chandler staff and partners in admin and 

management modules

REPORTING & ANALYTICS User registration data by user type. Platform analytics and 
marketing performance reporting 

REGISTRATION TO CHANDLER 
PIPELINE

Registrations to Chandler Pipeline AZ enables enhanced user 
tracking and chandler curated content



PIPELINE AZ

City of Chandler Platform: Features

11

FEATURE SOLUTION

CUSTOMIZED EDUCATION AND 
TRAINING INFORMATION

City-curated education and training options for career pathway 
content. 

CASE MANAGEMENT Case Management module for providers supporting Chandler 
students and job seekers

CONNECTION TO K12 & 
CHANDLER/GILBERT COMMUNITY 

COLLEGE

Option to offer Chandler-supported Case Management and/or 
connection to Pipeline AZ registered users

MAINTENANCE & SUPPORT Monthly cost for ongoing enhancements, content updates, 
platform upgrades



PIPELINE AZ

City of Chandler Platform: Costs

12

HOUR & COST ESTIMATE

SUBSITE & CUSTOM LANDING PAGE           
(ONE TIME)

180

SUPPORT & MAINTENANCE 
(ANNUAL)

120

PROJECT MANAGEMENT 80

DEVELOPMENT + MAINTENANCE 
(YEAR 1)

$16,800 + $18,200

ONGOING MAINTENANCE + 
SUPPORT (YEAR 2)

$18,200



Thank you!

ROADMAP

@PipelineAZ

@PipelineAZ

@PipelineAZ

@PipelineAZ

13

We aim to rise above 
the rest. Always.

For more information, reach out to 
MFoote@PipelineAZ.com

To learn more as a job seeker, employer, partner or 
community supporter, visit: 
www.pipelineaz.com


	Agenda
	AI 5004 Minutes of May 9, 2023, Regular Meeting
	       ATT_IDA Meeting Minutes 5-09-23
	AI 5005 May, June, July, August and September 2023 Financials
	       ATT_IDA Financial Statements May 2023 to September 2023
	MAY 23
	JUN 23
	JUL 23
	AUG 23
	SEP 23
	CIDA_INC.pdf
	May 23
	Jun 23
	Jul 23
	Aug 23
	Sep 23


	AI 5282 2022 IRS Form 990
	       ATT_2022 IRS Form 990 - Filed
	       ATT_Form 990 Signature Page
	AI 5283 2022 Arizona Corporation Commission Filing - IDA
	       ATT_2022 AZ Corp Commission Filing 
	AI 5003 Chandler Workforce Development Platform Grant Proposal Presentation
	       ATT_IDA Grant Application
	       ATT_Presentation

